

web client user guide

T3 Version 5.x

INTRODUCTION

KwikTag transactional content management software transforms your business paper into digital records and manages them along with other digital documents that support your day-to-day business transactions.

This User Guide is designed to provide an overview of the KwikTag Web Client capabilities and to enable you to start using KwikTag quickly.

Before getting started this is what you will require:

- Access to a Web browser
- A KwikTag Logon ID and Password (get this information from your company's KwikTag Administrator)
- A KwikTag Label Dispenser and a roll of KwikTag Labels

This guide will show you how to get started using the KwikTag Web Client. Depending on your user license all of these features may not be available to you.

CONTENTS

Logging into your KwikTag Client
KwikTag Tabs and your Landing Page5
Menu Features and Functions: Documents Landing Page7
My Lists Menu Functions8
KwikTag Library Features11
KwikTag Library Menu Functions12
Menu Features and Functions: Work Queue17
Menu Features and Functions: Reports23
Menu Features and Functions: Search25
KwikTag Upload27
KwikTag Help29
KwikTag Logout and Preferences

LOGGING INTO YOUR KWIKTAG CLIENT

- 1. Open a Web Browser
- 2. Enter the URL for the KwikTag Server (http://<<Your KwikTag Server IP Address>>)
- 3. Enter your KwikTag User ID and password (Figure 1)
- 4. **Click** on the '>' symbol or **Press** the *Enter* key.

🔗 KwikTag - Windows Internet Explorer				
C = 10.32.8.195/		▼ 🗟 49 ×	🔁 Bing	م
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help				
🝲 Favorites 🛛 🙀 📴 Suggested Sites 👻 🔊 Web Slice Gall	ery 🕶			
🥳 KwikTag		🔓 🔹 🖻	🔹 🖃 🖶 👻 Page 🕶	Safety 🔹 Tools 👻 🔞 👻
			_	
		-		
lewiktag		Username:		
	by Imagetag	Password:		
			LOGIN	•
Transactional C	ontent	8 () () () () () () () () () (rooiu	×
Manageme	ont			
i lallagerrie	a iu	Welcome to T3!!!		
Descurrent invasion				
Content Imaging	Implements in days			
Workflow and time another 2 tording	Easy to use			
vvorknow routing, approval or tracking	Speed to value			
and the second se				
Embedded in Dynamics AX, GP, NAW and SharePoint				
and the other designment of th				

Figure 1 : KwikTag Login Page

KWIKTAG TABS AND YOUR LANDING PAGE

After logging in to KwikTag, your screen will display the default tab that has been configured for your user ID. This is typically the 'Documents' Tab, or the 'Work Queue' Tab.



Figure 2a : Landing Page – Documents

The Documents Tab: The Documents Tab displays documents stored in the KwikTag system and provides access to functions that allow you to add, edit, move, search, export or email documents associated with your KwikTag system. For users whose primary responsibility is managing documents within the system, this will be their primary destination.

ume S	ents Wo Site	ork Queue Case	es Rep Showing 4	orts S	Search	Upload	Help 🦧	Clear
5 • •	Site	Document Ivne	Showing 4			Filter:		Clear
5 • •	Site	Document Type						oredi
• •		Docomentitype	Assignee	Action	Status	Comments	Date Received	Tag Numb
	(wikTag	NonPO Invoice	Approvers	Approval	New		12/13/2012 1:34:32 PM	980000101
k	(wikTag	NonPO Invoice	Approvers	Approval	New		12/18/2012 3:45:44 PM	980000114
k	(wikTag	NonPO Invoice	Approvers	Approval	New		1/30/2013 5:29:10 PM	980000161
k	(wikTag	Purchase Invoice	Approvers	Approval	New		1/18/2013 5:16:32 PM	980000143
	,	KwikTag	KwikTag Purchase Invoice	KwikTag Purchase Invoice Approvers	KwikTag Purchase Invoice Approvers Approval	KwikTag Purchase Invoice Approvers Approval New	KwikTag Purchase Invoice Approvers Approval New	KwikTag Purchase Invoice Approvers Approval New 1/18/2013 5:16:32 PM

Figure 2b: The Work Queue Tab

The Work Queue Tab: is the primary destination for reviewers or approvers of documents that have been routed using KwikTag workflow to the appropriate stakeholders in a business process. This tab is only relevant for those companies that have chosen to configure workflow processes for their documents. From this Tab, users can view documents and data, approve, reject or delegate documents, view related documents or detailed document data.

The Cases Tab: is configured or "personalized" by ImageTag's Professional Services team (or by your KwikTag administrator) to the specific document types, document workflow processes and document associations that have been configured for your organization. Cases can include a variety of documents, aggregated into a single view, along with related workflow status and case timelines.

The Reports Tab: is configured or "personalized" by ImageTag's Professional Services team (or by your KwikTag administrator) to the specific document types and document workflow processes that have been configured for your organization. Reports can include a variety of data associated with documents that have been routed by KwikTag for review and approval.

The Search Tab: provides the ability to conduct a global search across KwikTag sites and/or KwikTag drawers. Users have the option to tailor their search based on a number of advanced search criteria.

The Upload Tab: provides the ability to drag and drop electronic documents (such as Word or PDF documents) or browse out to a file from a user's desktop or shared network folder into the KwikTag system. Microsoft Outlook files can be added using this function by first dragging the email to the user's desktop, then navigating to, or dragging the file over, the Upload inbox icon.

The Help Tab: provides access to KwikTag release notes, Customer Support contact details and the ability to contact KwikTag support with questions or product feedback.

MENU FEATURES AND FUNCTIONS: DOCUMENTS LANDING PAGE

KwikTag provides easy access to document management functions in three ways: from a right-click menu, a floating menu, or via keyboard shortcuts. This section of the Quick Reference provides a summary of those features and explains how they can be accessed.

"My Lists" and Library Tabs

In the upper left-hand corner of the KwikTag Documents Tab, two lcons are displayed that allow users to alternate between views of select documents that they have selected for quick reference, and the library of KwikTag documents that have been organized by Site and Folder for all users to access. To access either item, simply click on the associated icon.



Figure 3: My Lists and Library Tabs

My Lists

My Lists provides a view of a subset of documents stored in the KwikTag document library. These lists are created by each user by selecting the <u>Save View</u> function that is accessed from the KwikTag library or searches (described below). The My Lists view has its own unique menu of functions, which are a subset of the menu functions available from the KwikTag Library. These menu items are covered below on the Documents Tab menu section of this guide.

The KwikTag Library: All Doc Types and My Favorites

The KwikTag Library is organized into a series of folders that contain all your organization's documents. Depending on how your organization is structured, these folders may be organized into separate sites.

To access all available sites and folders, click the "My Library," then click the "All Doc Types" radio button. You may designate frequently-accessed folders as Favorites my right-clicking your mouse over the folder, then clicking "Add to Favorites."





MY LISTS MENU FUNCTIONS

Figure 5 below displays the options available to KwikTag users by clicking the right button on their mouse from anywhere within the main My Lists window display. A subset of these menu options also may be accessed by selecting the 'Show Menu Always' option displayed at the bottom of the right-click menu (Figure 6). Alternately, KwikTag provides keyboard shortcuts for these functions (Figure 7).



Figure 5: KwikTag Document Management Right-Click Menu Options

Lowileto a											Welcome:	Wills	;
KWIKLAg	Docum	ents Work C	Queue Cas	ses	Reports	Search		Upload		Help	\$	(
My Lists 🗊 Library		Most Red	cent		Showing	2	Fil	ter:			Clear		
(Doc Type	Tag Number	User	Scanned Page	s V	L	Name	Site	Tagged	Date Scanned		
Most Recent		\geq	980000548	Steve	1	F	F	ktappbC	Fabrik	3/1/2012;	3/1/2012 7:37:4	8 1	
My New Documents	•		980000547	Stevel	1	F	F	ktappbC	Fabrik	3/1/2012;	3/1/2012 7:35:0	7 :	
My Email Contacts													
	Th fui Kw	is floatin nctions c vikTag in	ig menu of an be mov terface.	f basic ved to	: documen any locati	t mai on w	nag ithi	ement in the			U IIII &		H
	l	•										•	•

Figure 6: Show Menu Always (KwikTag floating menu) (need new screen shot for the new menu)

Menu options available from the My Lists tab include:

Edit (*Ctrl EE*) allows users to edit data associated with a KwikTag document, or a reservation for a document.

Add Index (*Ctrl AI*) allows users to create multiple document records for the same document image. As a result, a single KwikTag barcode links one document image to multiple document records. Clicking this option results in the display of an Index window with data fields to be completed for that record. For users or earlier KwikTag versions, this function replaces the Multiple Document Mode (MDM) feature.

Open (*Ctrl OH to open here; Ctrl ON to open in line*) presents users with the option of viewing documents within the same window, or in a separate window (ideal for multiple monitors). The Open Here option allows users to scroll through records using their mouse or keyboard while viewing the associated document image automatically. Using the Open in New Window option (or double clicking the document) launches a new window and displays the document. Note that the separate window display does not refresh to show a new image as the user scrolls from one record to the next.

KwikTag provides an instant preview of PDF documents. For other document types (such as Microsoft Office documents), KwikTag provides the option to launch the native application for the document (example: Microsoft Word) by choosing Open. Alternately, the user can select "Save As" to save a local copy of the document before opening it in the appropriate application.

louil to a								Wel	come: Adr	ninistrator
KWIKLAg	Documen	ts Work Q	ueue Cases	Reports	Search	Uploa	d H	elp	&	۵ 🖨
My List 🗊 Library	/	DO Re	cent WQ	CA	Showing RI	E Filter:	SE		UD	Clear
		Doc Type	Tag Number	User	Scanned Page	es V L	Name	Site	Tagged	
My Email Contacts	<u>^</u>	1	KT000000290	Administrator	1	F F		KwikTag	3/6/2013	3:47:19 PM
		5	KT000000292	Administrator	1	F F		KwikTag	3/6/2013	5:48:26 PN
WorkflowAssignmentLookup		-	KT000000294	Administrator	0	F F		KwikTag	3/6/2013	5:59:59 PN
SvsCaseDefinition	•	-	KT000000293	Administrator	0	F F		KwikTag	3/6/2013	5:59:04 PN
		1	KT000000287	Administrator	1	F F		KwikTag	3/5/2013	5:38:35 PN
SysCaseDocType			KT000000289	Administrator	1	F F		KwikTag	3/6/2013	3:46:20 PN
Cases			KT000000285	Administrator	0	F F		KwikTaa	3/5/2013	5:36:45 PM
CaseDocuments	11	1	KT000000279	Administrator	1	F F		Kw	u Edît	×.
AssociatedDocument									Add	
EscalationDef									Open Her	re
EscalationHistory								Op	an in New W	lindow
Most Recent									Refresh	
My New Documents								5.45 - 4	Export	
AIRCRAFT abc	v	•								•

Figure 7: KwikTag Documents Tab keyboard shortcuts. Selecting the 'Ctrl' key highlights keyboard shortcuts for common KwikTag menu items.

Delete (*Ctrl DD*) allows users to delete documents and records from the KwikTag system. Users are prompted to confirm before any records are deleted.

Refresh (*Ctrl RR*) updates the view of the KwikTag Web client, so that any changes (deletions, additions, etc) are visible. Note that using Ctrl F5 to refresh the Web client will refresh the browser window, requiring you to log in to the KwikTag Web client again.

Export (*Ctrl EX*) allows users to export document data from a KwikTag list view to a CSV file that can be saved locally. This function exports the document data only—document images are not exported.

Email (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to email documents as attachments, as links to the record in KwikTag, or both.

Customize Layout (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to minimize or maximize their view of KwikTag document data. Maximizing the view removes the display of My List items to accommodate a wider field of index data.

Customize Columns (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to select/deselect the columns of data associated with their documents that they wish to display. After checking/unchecking these options simply click anywhere within the document data view to return to the updated display.

Resize Columns (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to select format column widths by the width of column headers, column data, or a 'best fit' between the two options.

Workflow History (*no keyboard shortcut*) displays a graphic view of each step that has been completed in a workflow process for documents that have been indexed and routed for approval. This function is only relevant to organizations relying on KwikTag workflow functionality. Documents that have not been routed for approval will display an icon indicating no workflow history.

Show Menu Always (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to view a persistent menu of options without having to rely on the right-click option.

KWIKTAG LIBRARY FEATURES

The KwikTag Library presents a menu of options similar to those available from the My Lists view, with five additional functions that support the capture and retrieval of documents to/from the KwikTag system. Like the My Lists view, these menu options can be accessed via right-click, from a floating menu, or via keyboard shortcuts.

The KwikTag Library displays document folders to the left of the screen. Optionally, these folders can be organized by Site. The selected folder is highlighted on the left. Its name also appears at the top of the displayed documents and data. To the right of the folder name, KwikTag presents two options.

A **Filter** window allows users to enter keywords and filter the display of documents in the folder to those whose index data include the keywords. To filter, type in your filter criteria and hit the Enter key on your keyboard. The filter will then be applied to the entire KwikTag document drawer. To clear the filter, click Clear.



Figure 8: KwikTag Documents Library Right-click Menu Options

KWIKTAG LIBRARY MENU FUNCTIONS

Tag (Ctrl T) allows users to enter index data associated with a paper document to be scanned into the KwikTag system. Required fields for a tagged document are highlighted in orange. When the user clicks submit, KwikTag assigns the barcode displayed in the Tag window to the record. A KwikTag adhesive barcode label with the same barcode number links a paper document to the Tag data so that when the document is scanned into KwikTag the data and documents are associated. If a user attempts to Open a document associated with the Tag record prior to scanning, KwikTag will display a message indicating that there is no document associated with the record.

Edit (*Ctrl EE*) allows users to edit data associated with a KwikTag document, or a reservation for a document.

Add Index *(Ctrl AI)* allows users to create multiple document records for the same document image. As a result, a single KwikTag barcode links one document image to multiple document records. Clicking this option results in the display of an Index window with data fields to be completed for that record. For users or earlier KwikTag versions, this function replaces the Multiple Document Mode (MDM) feature.



Figure 9: The KwikTag Tag Window (left) allows users to input filing information associated with the highlighted document. On the right, the KwikTag Documents Library Floating Menu Options are displayed.

Open (*Ctrl OH to open in new window or Ctrl ON to open inline*) presents users with the option of viewing documents within the same window, or in a separate window (ideal for multiple monitors). The

Open Here option allows users to scroll through records using their mouse or keyboard while viewing the associated document image automatically. Using the Open in New Window option requires the user to select a record and then open the image in a new window (the separate window display does not refresh to show a new image as the user scrolls from one record to the next). Double-clicking a record also will allow you to open the document in a new window.

KwikTag provides an instant preview of PDF documents. For other document types (such as Microsoft Office documents), KwikTag provides the option to launch the native application for the document (example: Microsoft Word) by choosing Open. Alternately, the user can select "Save As" to save a local copy of the document before opening it in the appropriate application.



Figure 10: KwikTag Documents Library Filter and Save View functions allow users to save document views to the My Lists menu.

Save View (Ctrl SV)(Figure 10) allows users to save a list of documents that have been filtered based on selected keyword criteria. The view is saved and can be retrieved from the My Lists menu. Prior to saving, the user is prompted to enter a name for the View.

Search (Ctrl F) allows users to search for documents within a folder based on specific Index data. Each index field associated with documents in the folder is displayed within the search tab, so that multiple search criteria can be selected to retrieve a specific document. When search results are returned for a folder, the folder name at the top of the screen will display a message indicating that the results are filtered. Click Clear from the search window to clear the Search. Click the 'X' at the top of the search window to close it.



Figure 11: KwikTag Documents Library Search Results (with 'Open Here' document view option). Users can search on any document index field.

Move allows users to move documents and data from one KwikTag folder to another. Note that if the destination folder stores different index data than the source folder, the data will not be moved with the image. To prevent accidentally losing data, KwikTag prompts users prior to completing the transfer.

Copy To allows users to copy documents and data from one KwikTag folder to another. Note that if the destination folder stores different index data than the source folder, the data will not be copied with the image. To prevent accidentally losing data, KwikTag prompts users prior to completing the transfer.

Delete (*Ctrl DD*) allows users to delete documents and records from the KwikTag system. Users are prompted to confirm before any records are deleted.

Associations allow users to view other records that have been configured to have a relationship to the document being viewed. This association may consist of metadata alone, or may include an associated document image as well. An example might include a purchase order associated with a PO invoice, or an invoice associated with a check image. Associated records are displayed in a floating that displays relevant data. Right clicking on an associated record provides the option to view an associated document.

	kwik <mark>tag</mark>	Docur	nents Work	Queue	Cases	Reports	Search	Upload	Help
k	wiktag 📃	nts Work Queue	Cases Repo	rts Search	Upload	Help		Welcome	: Administrator
I	💭 My List 🛛 🗾 Library	Check				Showing	9 6	Filter:	Clear
۲	All Doc Types 🔘 My Favorites	Check Number	Terms Discount	Vendor Name	Amount	Number of	f Vouchers to Pay	Number of Vouchers Approve	d Document 1
Site:	KwikTag 🔹	445	0.00	Advanced Office	e Systems 336.34	3		3	2
		444	0.00	Merit System	5500.00	2		2	2
	Approved Check	440	0.00	Image Makers A	🔶 Tag			2	
	Assessed Contracts	264	0.00	Beaumont Const	n 🧪 Edit			3	2
	Approved Contracts	443	0.00	International Tele	ndex 🏹			1	2
0	Candidates	439	0.00	A Travel Compar	Copen	•		2	2
	Candidates Archive				Save View				
	Check				🞯 Move				
0	Contract				Copy To X Delete				
0	Cover Letter				Associations	•	🊁 Show Associa	ations	
C	Customer Feedback				Refresh Export				
	Customer Feedback Archive				Email				
0	Electronic Documents				Customize Co	olumns 🕨			
	Employee Requisitions				Resize Colum	ns 🕨			
C	Interview Notes				Workflow Hist	ory Always			

Figure 12: Show Associations allows users to view other documents associated with a transaction.

lowileto a									Welcor	ne: Wills
KWIKLAg	Documents	Work Queue	e Case	s Repo	rts	Search	Upload	Hel	D	۵ 🗘
kwiktag 📃	s Work Queue	Cases Rep	ports Sei	arch Uploa	d	Help			Welcome: A	dministrator
My List 🗾 🔟 Library	Check					Showing 6			Filter:	Clear
All Doc Types My Favorites	Check Number	Terms Discour	t Vendor N	ame	Amount	Number of Vo	ouchers to Pay	Number o	f Vouchers Approved	Document
Site: KwikTag 🗸	445	0.00	Advance	d Office Systems	336.34	3		3		2
	444	0.00	Merit Syste	em	5500.00	2		2		2
Approved Check	440	0.00	image Mo	akers Advertising	4648.00	2		2		2
	264	0.00	Beaumon	t Construction	9274.45	3		3		2
O Approved Contracts	443	0.00	Internatio	nal Telephone	148.76	1		1		2
🔁 Cara Editata	439	0.00	A Travel C	Company	2754.78	2		2		2
Condidates Archive										
	- E-	Associations at	a Glance						×	
Coniract	Pay	ables Transactior	n Entry						•	
🔯 Cover Letter	C	ompany ID Ve	endor ID	Voucher No.	Purc	hases Amount	User	Barcode		
	► Fe	abrikam, Inc. A	CETRAVE0001	00000000000000000	017 596.	03	Administrator	998000128		
Customer Feedback	F	abrikam, Inc. Ad	CETRAVE0001	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	020 2158	3.75	Administrator	998000129	*	
Customer Feedback Archive									<u> </u>	

Figure 13: Associations are displayed in a floating window that displays document details. Right click on a row and click "View Doc" to see the image associated with it.

Refresh (*Ctrl RR*) updates the view of the KwikTag Web client, so that any changes (deletions, additions, etc.) are visible.

Note that using Ctrl F5 DOES NOT refresh the KwikTag window, but rather, refreshes the entire browser window, requiring you to log in to the KwikTag Web client again.

Export (*Ctrl EX*) allows users to export document data from a KwikTag list view to a CSV file that can be saved locally. This function exports the document data only—document images are not exported.

Email (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to email documents as attachments, as links to the record in KwikTag, or both.

Customize Layout (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to minimize or maximize their view of KwikTag document data. Maximizing the view removes the display of My List items to accommodate a wider field of index data.

Customize Columns (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to select/deselect the columns of data associated with their documents that they wish to display. After checking/unchecking these options, simply click anywhere within the document data view to return to the updated display.

Resize Columns (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to select format column widths by the width of column headers, column data, or a 'best fit' between the two options.

Workflow History (*no keyboard shortcut*) displays a graphic view of each step that has been completed in a workflow process for documents that have been indexed and routed for approval. This function is only relevant to organizations relying on KwikTag workflow functionality. Documents that have not been routed for approval will display an icon indicating no workflow history.

										Welcom	ne: Will	s
KWIKLAg	Documents	Work Queue	Cases	Reports	Search	U	pload	l Help		វ	\$ (0
My Lists 🗾 Library	Invoices	Off On Sho	owing 35 Filter:		o 🖩 🔿	14 4 Po	ge	1/1 ⊧ ⊧ ∈	🔾 🕘 One Pag	ge 🔹 🖬		C
All Doc Types My Favorites	Company ID		Document Date	Document								-
Site: KwikTag 🔹	Fabrikam, Inc.		04/13/2011	1234	-						INVOIC	E
	Fabrikam, Inc.		03/06/2012	63206		beaung	Sug					
Contracts in Process	Fabrikam, Inc.		03/06/2012	0987								
Employee	Fabrikam, Inc.		03/06/2012	3098		7674 Constitution	on Drive, Tucsi	on, AZ 85716		DA	TE: MARCH 5, 20	912
HR Personnel Action Form	Fabrikam, Inc.		03/06/2012	SAF 3612		[e-mail]	5500 Pax 555-7	67-1100				
	Fabrikam, Inc.		03/05/2012	19999		Fabrikan 2320 Hour Kansas Cit	inton Blvd tv. KS 64108					
	<i>.</i>					816-555-S Customer	555 ID 3677650					
Ovations PAF	3/5/2012	AM 10	5/2012 :19:30 AM			SALESPE	Instead	JOS Rumpor écrembly	PAYMENT TERMS			
	1 Wills	1 Ap	provers		П	017		DESCRIPTION		UNIT PRICE		_
Purchase Oraers	-	· · ·	<u>^</u>							453.00		_
Tier Approval Invoices	Tagger	d 🔹 💽 PE	The Approval			100	Bomper assem			130.00	1900.0	~
	Fabrikam, Inc.		03/05/2012	080870								
	Fabrikam, Inc.		03/04/2012	TJJ-MAR04								
	Fabrikam, Inc.		01/24/2012									
	Fabrikam, Inc.		01/20/2012	6546546546							45000 5	
	Fabrikam. Inc.		01/11/2012	WER888	-					SALES TAK TOTAL	1,200.0	20



Show GL Distributions (*no keyboard shortcut*) displays a floating window that shows details for G/L distributions associated with documents such as invoices. This display is used to supplement the G/L distributions index field, which simply indicates the number of G/L codes associated with a record. The GL distribution window displays each account number, an associated description, type and the debit or credit amount.

Show Menu Always (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to view a persistent menu of options without having to rely on the right-click option.

MENU FEATURES AND FUNCTIONS: WORK QUEUE

The KwikTag Work Queue page is designed to assign documents to KwikTag users in support of a variety of tasks, including adding index data to documents, or reviewing/approving documents as part of a defined business process. Workflows can be pre-configured by KwikTag professional services team as part of your deployment, based on your organization's unique business rules.

KwikTag administrators have access to KwikTag workflow configuration. With appropriate training, they can modify workflow processes or create new workflows according to your business needs.

KwikTag Work Queue Menu Functions

The KwikTag Work Queue displays relevant document for a selected record in the center of the screen and a panel on the left for indexers to add data, or approvers to approve, delegate or reject documents. Users can choose to view documents associated with the selected record in the same window, or in a separate window in the same manner employed on the Documents tab.



Figure 16: KwikTag Work Queue for Indexers (Index data fields and Submit Options)

Additional menu options are accessed in three ways: by right-clicking in the main area of the Work Queue, by selecting items from the floating Menu, or by using keyboard shortcuts.

The **Filter** function at the top of the Work Queue screen functions like the Filter from the Documents Tab—however, retrieving the Filtered View for Work Queue items functions differently. To filter records in your Work Queue, enter a keyword in the Filter window and press return on your keyboard. The Filter window will retain the keywords, highlighted in yellow. Only records that contain the keyword in the filter window will be displayed. . To filter, type on your filter criteria and hit the Enter key on your keyboard. The filter window. The filter window will be displayed.



Figure 17: Approver Work Queue: Filter and Right-click menu with Set View selected. Use Save View to save a filtered view. Select Set View>Saved View to retrieve the saved, filtered view.

To save the filtered results as a View, select the **Save View** function from the Right-click or Floating Work Queue menu. To switch between a saved, filtered view and the complete work queue, select the **Set View** function from the right-click or floating menu, then choose between Default View and Saved View. Default view always shows the complete work queue.

View Menu Choices allows users to choose to view all items in their work queue, or to select items to be viewed based on the required action. Users can select items to tag, items to edit, items to approve or completed items. These same options are available as check boxes from the floating KwikTag menu (as seen in Figure 14).

Open (Ctrl ON and Ctrl OH) options function like the open options from the Documents menu. Users can choose to Open Here and view documents in a PDF viewer window in line with the document data. Alternately, they can choose to open documents in a separate window.

Stop Workflow (Ctrl ST) Stop workflow is used to terminate any active workflow at any point during the excitation process. The workflow item is marked as stopped for audit purposes. User must be a member of the workflow admin group to have access to stop a workflow.

Refresh (Ctrl RR) updates the view of the KwikTag Web client, so that any changes (deletions, additions, etc.) are visible.

Customize Columns (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to select/deselect the columns of data associated with their documents that they wish to display. After checking/unchecking these options simply click anywhere within the document data view to return to the updated display.

Resize Columns (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to select format column widths by the width of column headers, column data, or a 'best fit' between the two options.

As described above, the **Save View** function allows users to save a Filtered view of the work queue.

Set View allows users to choose between the Default View (all documents) and a Saved View (filtered results).

Show GL Distributions (*no keyboard shortcut*) functions as described in the Documents Tab. This display is used to supplement the G/L distributions index field, which simply indicates the number of G/L codes associated with a record.

Workflow History (*no keyboard shortcut*) displays a graphic view of each step that has been completed in a workflow process for documents that have been indexed and routed for approval. This function is only relevant to organizations relying on KwikTag workflow functionality. Documents that have not been routed for approval will display an icon indicating no workflow history.

Show Menu Always (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to view a persistent menu of options without having to rely on the right-click option.

MENU FEATURES AND FUNCTIONS: CASES

The KwikTag Cases page is designed to support users who wish to rely on KwikTag's ability to monitor <u>multiple</u> documents through review and approval processes as part of a single, defined business process. Cases can be pre-configured by KwikTag's professional services team as part of your deployment, based on your organization's unique business rules. Cases are usually defined around a multi-document process like check approval, where prior purchase order or invoice approvals may have occurred. Or, around a process like human resources recruiting, where job requisitions, job postings and resumes and related documents can be aggregated and tracked for each applicant.

The following screen images highlight the main features and functions of KwikTag cases. As with other KwikTag features functionality is accessed via right-click menus.



Figure 18: KwikTag Case view for Human Resource Applicant Tracking. Each case automatically aggregates all documents related to the job applicant.



Figure 18a. Right Click on a document icon to view a menu of case document options. Select Open Here or Open in a New Window to view case documents. Select Open Workflow History to view that specific document's workflow approval status. Select Open Associated documents to view documents associated with that specific case document.



Figure 18b. Preview of all Case documents.



Figure 18c. KwikTag Case Workflow. Right click on the document, then select "Open Workflow History" to see any steps in the approval process.



Figure 18d. Case-related status: right click on the case (not on the document). Case timeline presents a status of all related documents in the case. Pending approvals shows any outstanding steps in the approval process for case documents.



Figure 18e. Case timeline. Right click on the case and select the case timeline option to see approvals and actions related to all documents in the case.

MENU FEATURES AND FUNCTIONS: REPORTS

The KwikTag Reports tab displays a variety of different views of documents and related data. The reports available to KwikTag users depend upon their KwikTag configuration and the types of documents and approval workflows that are being used.

KwikTag Reports Menu Functions To select a KwikTag report, click on the folder icon on the left-hand side of the screen. KwikTag will then display documents and data associated with this report view. Workflow status reports are typical KwikTag reports that segment documents into Approved, Pending and Rejected categories. Each of these views can be personalized to reflect all documents, or present the view of a particular period of time (e.g. monthly, quarterly, etc.).

← → C 🗋 10.32.8.180)									2 =
🗋 Suggested Sites 📑 Web Slice	e Gallery 📋 Imp	ported From IE								Other bookmarks
kwik <mark>tag</mark>	Documents	Work Queue	Cases Re	ports	Search	Uplo	ad Help			Welcome: Administrator
Reports							Showing 5			
		Organization			Number	Amount	Received Date	Comments	Days Pending	
-		Advanced Off	ice Systems		45355AO\$	5000	12/07/12		91	
Pending Approval		Del Monte Foc	ds		DMF001	2500	2012-10-05 12:00:00		154	
Approved		GSE Construct	ion	0.	GSE001	5000	2012-09-04 12:00:00		185	
_		Hulcher Servic	es	Op Op	en un un u	•	2012-08-14 12:00:00		206	
Rejected		International C	commerical Trai	wo 🕎	rktiow History	10	2012-09-17 12:00:00		172	
PendingContracts inActive Job partings Report Active Job Partings Report Rejected Requisitors Rep General Ledger Accrual R Open Checks Check Reconciliation Candidates Report	ort t leport			Exp	ort					
Candidates Per Job Repo	rt rt									

Figure 19: KwikTag Reports display documents and data that can be configured based on a variety of criteria, depending on the document type, associated data and workflow processes.

Open (*no keyboard shortcut*) presents users with the option of viewing documents within the same window, or in a separate window (ideal for multiple monitors). The Open Here option allows users to scroll through records using their mouse or keyboard while viewing the associated document image automatically. Using the Open in New Window option requires the user to select a record and then open the image in a new window (the separate window display does not refresh to show a new image as the user scrolls from one record to the next).

Export (*no keyboard shortcuts*) allows users to export document data from a KwikTag list view to a CSV file that can be saved locally. This function exports the document data only—document images are not exported.

Workflow History (*no keyboard shortcut*) displays a graphic view of each step that has been completed in a workflow process for documents that have been indexed and routed for approval. This function is only relevant to organizations relying on KwikTag workflow functionality. Documents that have not been routed for approval will display an icon indicating no workflow history.

Refresh (Ctrl RR) updates the view of the KwikTag Web client, so that any changes (deletions, additions, etc.) are visible.

MENU FEATURES AND FUNCTIONS: SEARCH

The KwikTag Search tab allows users to retrieve documents by searching filing information or document content. Advanced search features allow users to narrow search criteria down to specific document drawers and date ranges.

							Welcom	ne: Administrator 🔺
KWIKLAg	Documents Wo	rk Queue Co	ises	Reports	Search	Upload	Help	& ∅
🥬 Search	Show	ing 53 Filter:			Clecx	🔁 TXT File		
Search for:	Туре	Site	Doc]	Dpen	•	System: 9	/1/2012 7:48:53	PM
Check* Advanced S	earch 🛆 📑	Fabrikam, Inc.	Paya	🗎 Save Viev	N	User Date: 4	4/12/2017	COMP Payables Mar
Find in: Document Content	- Diale	KwikTag	Chec	🧪 Edit		Batch ID: Batch Comm	COMPUTER CH nent: Computer C	ECKS
Location: All Sites	- D	KwikTag	Chec	🗙 Delete		Coun	t Totals	Approved:
From:	- P	KwikTag	Chec		ana 🕨	Control:	0 \$0.00 3 \$16.677.2	Approved By:
By date: All		KwikTag	Chec	Export	5115 -	Batch Error I	Messages:	=
Within: Date Range	- T	KwikTag	Rejec	Resize Co	olumns 🕨			
Start: <m d="" yyyy=""></m>	15	Fabrikam, Inc.	Paya	Workflow	History	Oh a sh Nh mah		
End: <m d="" yyyy=""></m>	15	Fabrikam, Inc.	Paya	oles Transaction	n Entry	Payment N	umber:	Terms Disc Avai
🔲 Advanced Techr	niques	Fabrikam, Inc.	Paya	bles Transaction	n Entry	Document Vendor ID:	Date: 4/12/201 ACETRAVE	7 Voided 0001
	eset	Fabrikam, Inc.	Paya	bles Transactio	n Entry	Vendor Che Messages:	eck Name: A Trav	el Company
		Fabrikam, Inc.	Paya	oles Transactio	n Entry			
		Fabrikam, Inc.	Paya	oles Transaction	n Entry	General Le	daer Distributions	
		Fabrikam, Inc.	Paya	bles Transaction	n Entry	Account	Acco	unt Description
		Eabrikam Inc	Dava	olos Transactio	Entr	000-2100-	-00 Acc	counts Payable

Figure 20: KwikTag Search allows users to retrieve documents based on a number of criteria including filing information and document content.

KwikTag Advanced Search. The following search criteria can be accessed by clicking the Advanced Search link beneath the Search field.

Find in: Choose between filing information or filing information <u>and</u> document content when conducting a keyword search. Document content includes text within an electronic or scanned paper document.

Location: Choose a specific site to search for documents

From: For searches based on a specific Site, the From option allows users to search either '*All Documents*' or choose a specific folder in the selected Site.

By Date: Choose the type of date for which you wish to conduct a search based on a date range. Choices include Modified date, Received date, Retention date or Tagged date.

Within: (Date range) Select how you want to conduct a date search from the drop down list. If you select '*Date Range*' enter a '*Start Date:*' and '*End Date:*'

Start: (Date) Enter a start date for the date range search

End: (Date) Enter an end date for a date range search

KwikTag Search Menu Right-Click Functions

Open (*no keyboard shortcut*) presents users with the option of viewing documents within the same window, or in a separate window (ideal for multiple monitors). The Open Here option allows users to scroll through records using their mouse or keyboard while viewing the associated document image automatically. Using the Open in New Window option requires the user to select a record and then open the image in a new window (the separate window display does not refresh to show a new image as the user scrolls from one record to the next).

To save the filtered results as a View, select the **Save View** function from the Right-click or Floating Work Queue menu. To switch between a saved, filtered view and the complete work queue, select the **Set View** function from the right-click or floating menu, then choose between Default View and Saved View. Default view always shows the complete work queue.

Edit (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to edit data associated with a KwikTag document, or a reservation for a document.

Delete (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to delete documents and records from the KwikTag system. Users are prompted to confirm before any records are deleted.

Associations allow users to view other records that have been configured to have a relationship to the document being viewed. This association may consist of metadata alone, or may include an associated document image as well. An example might include a purchase order associated with a PO invoice, or an invoice associated with a check image. Associated records are displayed in a floating that displays relevant data. Right clicking on an associated record provides the option to view an associated document.

Export (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to export document data from a KwikTag list view to a CSV file that can be saved locally. This function exports the document data only—document images are not exported.

Resize Columns (*no keyboard shortcut*) allows users to select format column widths by the width of column headers, column data, or a 'best fit' between the two options.

Workflow History (*no keyboard shortcut*) displays a graphic view of each step that has been completed in a workflow process for documents that have been indexed and routed for approval. This function is only relevant to organizations relying on KwikTag workflow functionality. Documents that have not been routed for approval will display an icon indicating no workflow history.

KWIKTAG UPLOAD

The KwikTag upload tab allows users to drag and drop, or navigate to documents from their PC or a network folder, placing a copy into a KwikTag drawer. Microsoft Outlook files can be added using this function by first dragging the email to the user's desktop, then navigating to, or dragging the file over, the Upload inbox icon.



Figure 21: KwikTag Upload allows users to select a KwikTag drawer and drag and drop electronic documents into the KwikTag system.

To add files to KwikTag using Upload, simply select a KwikTag drawer from the left-hand list of available drawers. Next, select a document from a folder on your PC (or network drive) and drag it over the inbox icon located on the right-hand side of the Upload interface (Figure 17). Optionally, users can click on the magnifying glass icon to navigate to a specific file on a local or network drive.

Once you have added an electronic document to a KwikTag drawer, KwikTag will prompt you to index the document with the appropriate filing information

kwiktag		A	Welcome: sean
Kinkeng	Documents WorkQueue Report	s Search Upload Help	
Tag x		Index the files you just added.	
Company ID:		•	
Document Date:	Advanced Office Invoice		
Document Number:	031512 WJS.pdr		
Purchases Amount:			
Vendor ID:			
GL Distribution:			Ŧ
Comments:	6		
Expected Page Count:			
Email this document to:			
Cancel Submit			

Figure 22: Once a user uploads a document to a KwikTag drawer, they are prompted to Tag the Document and insert the appropriate index data. Fields highlighted in orange are required fields. To complete the upload process, click Submit.

KWIKTAG HELP

The KwikTag Help Tab provides access to documentation, videos and KwikTag support contact information and a submission form to contact KwikTag via email.

The screen captures on the following page (Figures 21 and 22) illustrate the documentation and video content that can be accessed from within KwikTag. Note that the library of video tutorials and documentation will continue to expand. We invite you to submit your own suggestions for video tutorials or for KwikTag features using the 'Send Us Your Feedback' option.

kwiktag [.]		(7) Welcome: Administrato
8	Documents Work Queue Cases Reports Search Upload	i Help 🔏 🕼 🤇
Help Categories General Information VideoTutorials	General Information KwikTag Web User Client • Updated:11/27/2012 • Version:T3 - TCM Release Notes	Send Us Your Feedback Reason for contacting us: Questions About Kwiktag Products or Services Your message:
		Submit
	Customer Support Support is available for customers with a current Support Agreement Mon-Fri 6AM to 6PM MST Phone: (877) 594-5111 Email: <i>support@kwiktag.com</i>	

Figure 23: The KwikTag Help Tab. General information includes KwikTag version information, release notes and Customer Support Contact information.



Figure 24: KwikTag help videos provide brief, step-by-step tutorials on KwikTag tasks including Tagging, Editing and Moving a Document

KWIKTAG LOGOUT AND PREFERENCES

The KwikTag Logout and Preferences icons are displayed on the upper right-hand corner of the KwikTag interface. To log out, simply click the Red Log out icon. We should show the admin icon and explain it



Figure 25: KwikTag Preferences ('Gear') and Logout ('Power button') Icons

KwikTag Preferences

Clicking the KwikTag preferences icon launches the KwikTag Preferences menu (Fig. 34). From this menu, users can change settings for how KwikTag sites, drawers and documents are displayed; Register their KwikTag physical barcode tags, or change their KwikTag password.

The **My Preferences** area of the menu includes the following options:

Default Site: for companies that have set up KwikTag with multiple sites, users can choose the site that is displayed by default

Default Home Page: choose which KwikTag tab displays automatically when logging in to KwikTag

Default time for recent documents: choose how many days worth of documents are displayed in Work Queues. For example, if the default value is "7," the KwikTag system will look back 7 days and find any documents that were added in the past 7 days.

Max number of documents to pre-load: choose the number of documents that are automatically displayed in the grid for views and drawers. Options include 50, 100 or 250 documents. The greater the number of documents pre-loaded, the more time will be required for the page to finish loading.

Retain Entries: allows users to re-purpose data entered from a previous entry when tagging a document. If this option is selected, upon clicking Submit to Tag a document, a new Tag menu will be presented for the next document that includes the data entered for the previous document. This reduces data entry when multiple documents with similar data are being processed.

Luikto	100	101			Welcome	: wills
KWIKLA	8 Docur	nents WorkQueue	Reports Search	Upload Help	0	0
🛞 Work Queue		M LOR.	Showing 1	FillEr	C	lear
Site:	My Preferences			Change Password	<u></u>	Tag
KwikTag					1:43 A	M 12
Document:	Defc	ult Site: Kwikīag		New Password:	3:43 A	M 12
Contracts	Default Home	e Page: Work Queu	e 🔹 Verif	y New Password:	9 PM	980
De	fault time for recent doci	uments: 1 Day	-		Submit 49 AN	A 980
Contract N Max r	number of document to p	re-load: 100	•		37 PM	980
	Retain	Entries:	1		08 PM	980
Contract A			Submit		7:46 P	M 980
L 🔗	Reaister Taas				7:46 P	M 980
Received E	Enter and confirm th	e number of the first	available taa		7:46 P	M 980
Comments:	in your dispenser or from the Tag invento	sheet, or select a ne	w dispenser		7:46 P	M 980
Startin	ng Tag #:: Tag Di	spensers Assigned to	You:		7:47 P	M 980
	0775	87001	•		7:47 P	M 980
System Fi	rm lag #:	Assign To	gs		7:47 P	M 980
0	Posister Tags	100			27 AN	A 980
	Register togs				DO AN	A 980
		*[

Figure 26: The KwikTag Preferences Menu

Change Password

New Password: prompts users to enter a new KwikTag password

Verify New Password: requires users to re-enter the new password. KwikTag verifies that the entries match before confirming the password change.

Register Tags allows users to enter the starting Tag number for a roll of KwikTag adhesive barcode labels that have been assigned to them. KwikTag will automatically advance the barcode number when a document has been tagged.

Starting Tag #: Enter the first barcode number that is displayed on your roll of barcodes

Confirm Tag #: Re-enter the tag number. KwikTag will verify that the numbers match before registering the tags.

Tag Dispensers Assigned to You: allows users to register multiple rolls of Tags within KwikTag. Once a roll has been exhausted and a new roll must be registered, users can select the new roll here, rather than entering the starting tag #.

This concludes this User Guide for KwikTag Web client users.

If you have any questions regarding the use of the KwikTag Web Client please contact your company's KwikTag Administrator.



ImageTag, Inc. 1400 East Southern Avenue, Suite 800 Tempe, Arizona 85282

Phone: 480.753.9300 Fax: 480.753.9400 Toll Free: 1.888.KWIKTAG (594.5824)

www.imagetag.com